

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY
AND RETURN TO:
KEVIN L. EDWARDS, ESQ.
BECKER & POLLAKOFF, P.A.
630 S. ORANGE AVENUE
SARASOTA, FL 34236

RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS
INSTRUMENT # 2004058537 30 PGS
2004 MAR 31 12:20 PM
KAREN E. RUSHING
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA
HJAMES Receipt#454672

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
TO
DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM
OF
THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM
SECTION FOUR



The undersigned officers of The Inlets Condominium Association, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation organized and existing to operate and maintain The Inlets, a Condominium, Section Four according to the Declaration of Condominium thereof as recorded in O.R. Book 1666, Page 1770, et seq., Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, hereby certify that the attached amendments to the Declaration of Condominium were duly adopted in the manner provided in the governing documents of the Association at a duly convened membership meeting held on December 4, 2003. The undersigned further certify that the amendments were proposed and adopted by the membership in accordance with the condominium documentation, and applicable law.

Dated this 24 day of March, 2004.

THE INLETS CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION, INC.

Joan E. Kozicz
Witness Signature
JOAN E. KOZICZ
Printed Name

BY: Ronald L. Strelow
Ronald Strelow, Vice President

Witness Signature

Printed Name

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF SARASOTA

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 24th day of March, 2004 by Ronald Strelow, Vice Pres. of The Inlets Condominium Association, Inc., a Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation. He is personally known to me or has produced _____ as identification. If no type of identification is indicated, the above-named person is personally known to me.



Lee Ell
Notary Public
Printed Name Lee Ell
State of Florida
My Commission Expires 05/01/04

DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM

OF _____

INSTRUMENT # 2004058537
30 PGS

THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM

SECTION FOUR

~~TARTAN GULF COAST DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Florida corporation ("Developer")~~ THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION FOUR, being the ~~owner~~ owners of the fee simple title to the property described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto, for ~~itself themselves~~, its successors, grantees and assigns, hereby submits said property, improvements thereon and appurtenances thereto to condominium ownership pursuant to Chapter 718 of the Florida Statutes ("Condominium Act"), as enacted upon the date of recordation hereof.

All the restrictions, reservations, covenants, condition, easements and limitations of record contained herein shall constitute covenants running with the land or equitable servitudes upon the land, as the case may be, shall run perpetually unless terminated as provided herein, and shall be binding upon all Unit Owners as hereinafter defined. In consideration of receiving and by acceptance of a grant, devise or mortgage, all grantees, devisees or mortgagees, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns, and all parties claiming by, through or under such persons, agree to be bound by the provisions hereof, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association hereinafter defined. Both the benefits provided and the burdens imposed shall run with each Unit and the interests in Common Elements as defined herein.

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

As used in this Declaration, in the Articles of Incorporation and in the Bylaws attached hereto, and in all amendments thereto, unless the context requires otherwise:

- A. "Articles" and "Bylaws" means the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association, as they exist from time to time.
- B. "Assessment" means a share of the funds required for the payment of Common Expenses, which from time to time are assessed against any Unit Owner.
- C. "Association" or "Corporation" means THE INLETS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., the nonprofit Florida Corporation responsible for the operation of the Condominium.

- D. "Board of Administration" or "Board of Directors" means the board of directors or other representative body responsible for the administration of the Association.
- E. "Common Elements" means that portion of the Condominium Property not included in the Units. Common Elements shall include the tangible personal property required for the maintenance of the Common Elements even though owned by the Association.
- F. "Common Expenses" means the expenses of administration, maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of the Condominium Property, other expenses declared by the Association or this Declaration to be Common Expenses and any other valid expenses or debts of the Condominium as a whole or the Association, which are assessed against the Unit Owners.
- G. "Common Surplus" means the excess of all receipts of the Association, including but not limited to Assessments, rents, profits and revenues on account of the Common Elements, over the amount of the Common Expenses.
- H. "Condominium" is that form of ownership of Condominium Property under which Units in the Condominium are subject to ownership by one or more owners, and there is appurtenant to each Unit as part thereof an undivided share in the Common Elements.
- I. "Condominium Documents" means this Declaration of Condominium and exhibits thereto, the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of THE INLETS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., all as amended from time to time.
- J. "Condominium Parcel" means a Unit together with the undivided share in the Common Elements, which is appurtenant to the Unit.
- K. "Condominium Property" means and includes all lands that are subjected to condominium ownership, whether or not contiguous, and all improvements thereon, and all easements and rights appurtenant thereto intended for use in connection with the Condominium.
- L. "Declaration" or "Declaration of Condominium" means this instrument as it may from time to time be amended.
- ~~M. "Developer" means TARTAN GULF COAST DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Florida Corporation, as the Original Developer, AMERIFIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION, a United States corporation, as the Successor Developer, and any further successors and assigns thereafter.~~

- M. "Institutional Mortgagee" means a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, mortgage company, real estate investment trust, recognized institutional type lender or its loan correspondent, or agency of the United States Government, which owns or holds a mortgage encumbering a Condominium Parcel.
- N. "Limited Common Elements" means and includes those Common Elements, if any, which are reserved for the use of a certain Unit or Units to the exclusion of other Units.
- O. "Occupant" shall mean a person or persons in lawful possession of a Unit other than the owner or owners thereof.
- P. "Operation" or "Operation of the Condominium" means and includes the operation, administration and management of the Condominium Property.
- Q. "The Condominium" or "this Condominium" means THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION FOUR, as well as where applicable, all Condominium Sections of THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM.
- R. "The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation", means The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation, Inc., a nonprofit corporation organized to manage certain areas that are common to The Inlets Project.
- S. "Unit" means a part of the Condominium Property, which is to be subject to private ownership, as designated in this Declaration.
- T. "Unit Owner", or "Owner of a Unit" means the owner of a Condominium Parcel.
- U. "Utility Service" as used in the Condominium Act, construed with reference to this Condominium, and as used in this Declaration, the Articles and the Bylaws shall include, but not be limited to, electric power, gas, hot and cold water, trash and sewage disposal, cable TV and telephone.

ARTICLE II
DESCRIPTION OF CONDOMINIUM
AND THE INLETS PROJECT

- A. The name of this Condominium shall be THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION FOUR.
- B. This Condominium is a part of a planned development. ~~which will, if fully developed, contain a maximum of three hundred fifteen (315) residential dwellings, together with other amenities.~~ The entire development is sometimes hereinafter described as "The Inlets Project". ~~The residential~~

~~development within The Inlets Project may consist entirely of condominiums, or such mixture of condominiums, platted subdivisions and other forms of land ownership and use as Developer, in its sole discretion, shall determine.~~

- C. Condominium documents creating THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION ONE, THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION TWO, THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION THREE, THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION FIVE, THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION SIX, THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION SEVEN, THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION EIGHT, AND THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION NINE have heretofore been recorded in the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, wherein the right to create additional sections of THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, was reserved. Developer does hereby create an additional section of THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, on the lands described in Exhibit "A".
- D. ~~Developer may, but is not obligated to, create additional sections of THE INLETS from time to time on lands adjacent to or near those of this Condominium, which said additional sections, if any, may, if Developer elects, be operated and managed in conjunction with this Condominium through that certain nonprofit organization known as THE INLETS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC. (the "Association"). The creation of such additional sections of THE INLETS will not merge the Common Elements of this Condominium with the Common Elements of such additional sections.~~ Each such section will be and remain a separate condominium under the laws of Florida, but may be operated and managed, as aforesaid, by the Association in conjunction with other sections of THE INLETS, collectively, in order that there may be common control, unity of policy, procedure, management and purpose of the said sections of THE INLETS and the Owners of Units in the same. Unless prohibited by law, the income and common expenses with respect to any such Condominium may be commingled with those of other Condominiums operated by the Association in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. The Association and the Unit Owners in each section shall have a perpetual non-exclusive easement for utilities, drainage, and ingress and egress, under and through the common areas of each of the other sections, and such easement shall survive the termination of any other sections. All grantees, mortgagees, assignees and their successors and assigns of Unit Parcels in THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION FOUR, do hereby agree to the foregoing.
- E. ~~Developer agrees to construct and develop~~ Certain recreational facilities and other improvements have been developed on the lands described in Exhibit "E" attached hereto, for the use and enjoyment of all residents in The Inlets Project. These recreational facilities and improvements shall include a

swimming pool, at least four (4) tennis courts and clubhouse facility. The recreational facilities ~~shall be~~ **are** part of "The Inlets Common Facilities" described in the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for The Inlets, as described in greater detail herein. In addition, Developer may, but is under no obligation to, provide other recreational facilities and amenities within The Inlets Project.

~~F. Provided that Developer shall obtain all required approvals and permits from all local, state and/or federal departments and agencies for construction of a proposed marina facility, Developer may, but is not obligated to, construct a marina facility within The Inlets Project. This facility will not be a portion of this Condominium or any other condominium or residential development within The Inlets Project. If constructed, the marina facility (and related amenities that Developer may elect to construct) may either be public or private, as Developer, in its sole discretion, determines. No Unit Owner shall be obligated to join or use the marina or related facilities, but rather all be entitled to use same at the same cost and on the same basis as the use is offered to others. While Developer reserves the right, at its option, to construct such marina facilities, Developer has no present plans to construct the marina facilities.~~

ARTICLE III

IDENTIFICATION OF CONDOMINIUM UNITS

- A. A Survey of the land being submitted to condominium ownership and a Plot Plan thereof identifying each Condominium Unit and the Common Elements and their respective locations and approximate dimensions is attached hereto as Exhibit "B". The locations, dimensions, identification and numbering or lettering of the respective Condominium Units shall be as set forth in said Exhibit and any subsequent amendments thereto, as hereinafter provided.
- B. Each Unit shall include that part of the Condominium Property which lies within the boundaries of the Unit, which boundaries shall be determined in the following manner:
1. **Upper and Lower Boundaries.** The upper and lower boundaries of the Unit shall be the same as the upper and lower boundaries of a parcel of real estate owned in fee simple and shall be determined in the same manner and under the same laws, which establish the upper and lower boundaries of such a parcel of real estate.
 2. **Parametrical Boundaries.** The parametrical boundaries of the Unit shall be as shown on the "Survey and Plot Plan", attached as Exhibit "B" (wherein each Unit is identified and the parametrical boundaries of each

Unit are indicated by four (4) or more intersecting solid lines) extended to intersections with each other and with the upper and lower boundaries.

- C. Each Unit, together with all appurtenances thereto, shall for all purposes constitute a separate parcel of real property which may be owned in fee simple and which may be conveyed, transferred and encumbered in the same manner as any other parcel of real property subject only to the provisions of the Condominium Documents.

ARTICLE IV
APPURTENANCES, POSSESSION AND ENJOYMENT

- A. There shall pass with each Unit as appurtenances thereto:
1. An undivided share in the Common Elements, including Limited Common Elements when applicable.
 2. An undivided share in the Common Surplus.
 3. Membership of the Unit Owner in the Condominium Association.
 4. Membership of the Unit Owner in The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation.
- B. Each Unit Owner is entitled to the exclusive possession of his Unit subject to other provisions of this Declaration. He shall be entitled to the use of the Common Elements, in accordance with the purposes for which they are intended, but no such use shall hinder or encroach upon the lawful rights of other Unit Owners.

ARTICLE V
RESTRAINT UPON SEPARATION AND PARTITION OF COMMON ELEMENTS

- A. The undivided share in the Common Elements, which is appurtenant to a Unit shall not be separated therefrom and shall pass with the title to the Unit, whether or not separately described.
- B. A share in the Common Elements appurtenant to a Unit cannot be conveyed or encumbered except together with the Unit.
- C. The shares in the Common Elements appurtenant to Units shall remain undivided, and no action for partition of the Common Elements shall lie.

ARTICLE VI
COMMON ELEMENTS

- A. There shall be appurtenant to each of the Units an undivided one-thirty second (1/32) ownership of the Common Elements. The Common Elements of the Condominium shall include the following:
1. The land described above and all improvements thereon, except for Units as shown on the aforementioned Survey and Plot Plan.
 2. Easements, as may be necessary, through Units for conduits, ducts, plumbing, wiring and other facilities for the furnishing of utility services to other Units or Common Elements.
 3. Installations for furnishing of utility services to more than one Unit or to the Common Elements or to a Unit other than the Unit containing installations.
 4. The property and installations in connection therewith required for the furnishing of services to more than one Unit or to the Common Elements.
 5. Easements for maintenance of Common Elements.
- B. The Limited Common Elements of this Condominium shall include:
1. Those Common Elements so designated by this Declaration.
 2. Those Common Elements so designated by the Survey and Plot Plan attached as Exhibit "B".

ARTICLE VII
COMMON EXPENSES AND SURPLUS

- A. The Common Expenses of the Condominium shall be assessed and the Common Surplus of the Condominium divided and apportioned among the Units in the same proportions as ownership of the Common Elements as set forth in Article VI above.
- B. Specifically included as Common Expenses are:
1. The premiums of all insurance policies obtained by the Association, as provided herein.

2. The costs of all utilities that are not separately metered to the individual Condominium Units.
 3. All costs and expenses incurred by the Association regarding the maintenance of lawns and landscaping within this Condominium, including lawns and landscaping located within the boundaries of Units.
 4. All costs and expenses incurred by the Association in roof cleaning and painting of trim on the dwellings constructed on the Units in this Condominium.
- C. Included in the Common Expenses of this Condominium may be an appropriate share as determined by the Association of the costs and expenses of providing and maintaining facilities and/or improvements on, in or as part of the Common Elements of other sections of THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM, which such facilities and improvements are for the mutual benefit of this Condominium and other sections of THE INLETS, A CONDOMINIUM.
- D. The Common Expenses shall also include the costs of carrying out the powers and duties of the Association and any other expenses designated as Common Expenses by the Condominium Act, this Declaration or the Bylaws.
- E. Certain expenses relative to the Units or improvements (houses or villas) ultimately constructed on the Units may not be Common Expenses. These expenses, however, as a matter of convenience and economy may be billed to Unit Owners by the Association, collected by the Association and remitted to the appropriate parties furnishing the service or services. Even though these expenses are not Common Expenses, due to the fact that the Association may contract on behalf of Unit Owners for them and be responsible for payment in full, it is necessary to provide the Association with enforcement rights concerning the same. Accordingly such expenses shall be collectible by the Association in the same manner as though the same were Common Expenses and shall be subject to collection remedies including lien rights and foreclosure by the Association in the same manner as though the same were Common Expenses pursuant to the provisions of this Declaration and the Act as amended from time to time. The Association shall have the right to determine which expenses are to be collected as provided hereinabove.
- ~~F. No Common Expenses or Surplus shall accrue relative to a Unit until such time as construction of the residential dwelling to be located within the Unit boundaries is complete.~~

ARTICLE VIII
EASEMENTS

- A. All of the following easements are hereby reserved in perpetuity and otherwise created, granted and conveyed in favor of ~~Developer, its grantees, substitutes, successors and assigns~~ the Association, and the Unit Owners, and are covenants running with the land of the Condominium.
1. Perpetual easements for the installation, construction and repair of private and public utility lines and services of all kinds under and over the surface of the Condominium Property which is not occupied by buildings or other structures. Utility easements may be granted by the ~~Developer or the~~ Association to any public or private utilities as may be necessary or desirable to provide utility services to any of the foregoing. All public and private utility companies rendering utility services to this Condominium shall have a perpetual, non-exclusive easement over, across, under and through all of the Condominium Property which is not occupied by buildings or other structures for the purpose of construction, installation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the utilities servicing this Condominium and for the purpose of reading meters in connection therewith.
 2. Pedestrian and vehicular traffic easements for pedestrian traffic over, through and across any sidewalks, parking areas, paths, walks, roads, streets, and lanes, as the same may from time to time exist, upon the Common Elements; and for vehicular traffic over, through and across such portions of the Common Elements as may be from time to time intended for such purposes, but the same shall not give or create in any person the right to drive or park upon any portions of the Condominium property not intended for such use or not so designated by the Association.
 3. If any improvements constructed on a Unit or if any Unit shall encroach upon any Common Element or upon any other Unit by reason of original construction or by the non-purposeful or non-negligent act of the Unit Owner, then an easement appurtenant to such encroaching improvement, to the extent of such encroachment shall exist so long as such encroachment shall exist. If any Common Element shall encroach upon any Unit by reason of original construction or the non-purposeful or non-negligent act of the Association then an easement appurtenant to such Common Element, to the extend of such encroachment, shall exist so long as such encroachment shall exist.
 4. The right to enter over, through and upon all the Condominium Property for the purpose of maintaining, repairing and replacing any

portions of the Condominium that are the responsibility of the Association; provided, however, that entry into the dwelling _____ constructed within the Unit boundaries shall be permitted only with the consent of the Unit Owner or pursuant to legal process.

5. Other easements, if any, shown on the Survey and Plot Plan attached as Exhibit "B".
- B. All of the following easements are hereby created and preserved in perpetuity in favor of ~~Developer, its grantees, substitutes, successors and assigns for the benefit of~~ the Association, ~~for the benefit of~~ Unit Owners in other sections of The Inlets, ~~for the benefit of~~ The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation, and for the benefit of all future property owners in The Inlets Project at other lands owned by the Developer in Section 36, Township 38 South, Range 18 East.
1. Pedestrian and vehicular traffic easements for pedestrian traffic over, through and across any sidewalks parking areas, paths, walks, roads, streets, and lanes, as the same may from time to time exist, upon the Common Elements, and for vehicular traffic over, through and across such portions of the Common Elements as may be from time to time intended for such purposes, but the same shall not give or create in any person the right to drive or park upon any portions of the Condominium property not intended for such use or not so designated by the Association.
 2. Perpetual easements for the installation, construction and repair of private and public utility lines and services of all kinds over, under and across all private roads reflected on the condominium plat of this Condominium.
- C. Should any of the intended easements described in this Declaration fail by reason of the fact that at the time of creation there may be no grantee in being having the capacity to take and hold such easement, then such grant of easement or reservation deemed not to be so created shall nevertheless be considered as having been granted and created directly to or for the benefit of the Association, or to The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation for the purpose of allowing the original intended party or parties to whom the easement was granted or reserved the benefit of such easement. ~~The Unit Owners designate the Developer and the Association as their lawful attorney-in-fact to execute any instrument on their behalf as may be hereinafter required or deemed necessary for the purpose of creating such easement.~~

ARTICLE IX
MANAGEMENT OF THE CONDOMINIUM
AND THE INLETS PROJECT

- A. The Association shall administer this Condominium and manage, maintain and repair the Condominium Property (except for the portions of Units to be managed, maintained and repaired by Owners and those areas common to The Inlets Project which are maintained by The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation). All persons owning a vested present interest or record in the fee title to any Condominium Parcel shall automatically be members of the Association and their respective membership shall terminate as their vested interest in the fee title to the Condominium Parcel terminates. Membership in the Association cannot be transferred, assigned or pledged in any manner except as an appurtenance to the respective Unit. All of the affairs of the Association shall be controlled by the Officers and the Board of Directors. A copy of the Articles of Incorporation, which has been filed with and certified by the Secretary of State of the State of Florida, is attached hereto as Exhibit "C". The Bylaws governing the operation of the Association are attached hereto as Exhibit "D". The powers and duties of the Association shall include those set forth in the Articles, the Bylaws, the Condominium Act, and this Declaration.
- B. The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation has been organized for the purpose of owning, operating, maintaining and improving The Inlets Common Facilities and for the purpose of enforcing covenants and restrictions as provided in the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for The Inlets as amended by the First Amendment to Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for The Inlets. All Unit Owners in this Condominium shall be members of The Inlets Common Facilities Corporation.

ARTICLE X
VOTING RIGHTS IN THE ASSOCIATION

Each Owner shall be entitled to one (1) vote in the Association for each Condominium Parcel owned by him, which shall be exercised only by that Owner or his proxy. If a person owns more than one (1) Unit, he shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Unit owned.

ARTICLE XI
BOAT DOCKS

- ~~A. Provided that Developer shall obtain all requisite approvals and permits from all local, state and/or federal departments and agencies for construction of the proposed dock improvements and boat mooring facilities ("boat docks"), as reflected on sheet 2 of the Survey and Plot~~

~~Plan, Developer reserves the exclusive right and privilege to construct said docks.~~

- A. ~~Upon Construction~~ Each boat dock shall be a Limited Common Element appurtenant to the contiguous Condominium Unit.
- B. A boat dock shall not be transferred or assigned by a Unit Owner except in connection with the sale of the Condominium Unit, and such transfer shall be automatic, even though reference to the boat dock is not contained in the deed of conveyance.
- C. ~~Once constructed,~~ the Boat docks may not ~~thereafter~~ be assigned by the Association, but shall remain at all times Limited Common Elements appurtenant to the contiguous Condominium Units.
- ~~D. It is specifically acknowledged that Developer may make an additional charge or increase the purchase price of a Condominium Unit in consideration of constructing a boat dock.~~
- D. No Unit Owner, lessee or other occupant of a Unit shall:
1. Anchor, dock or moor a boat the size, design and appearance of which has not been approved by the Association
 2. Construct any davits or other mechanism used to raise, hold or lower a boat out of and into the water other than davits and other mechanisms specifically approved by the Association.
 3. Use or allow to be used a boat as living quarters or as sleeping quarters.
 4. Erect or maintain any reflectors, illuminated signs, placards or posters whatsoever on or within the boat, boat dock or any Common Element without the prior written consent of the Association.
 5. Hang any laundry, garments or other unsightly objects that are visible outside of the boat.
 6. Permit or suffer anything to be done or kept in a boat moored at a boat dock that will increase insurance rates on any Unit or any Condominium Property.
 7. Allow or permit the boats moored at the boat dock to become unsightly, hazardous to health, or become in the opinion of the Association a nuisance.

8. Operate a boat other than at a safe operating speed at all times in all canals within The Inlets Project, and any and all waterways which may _____ from time to time exist therein. _____
- E. All Unit Owners, lessees or other occupants of a Unit shall comply with all rules and regulations of the Association governing the use, operation and maintenance of boat docks, the boats to be docked and the operation of boats in the canals and waterways serving The Inlets.
- F. Each Unit Owner shall be solely responsible for the repair, maintenance and upkeep of the boat dock, which is a Limited Common Element appurtenant to his Unit.
- G. A Unit Owner may allow another Unit Owner in The Inlets to use his boat dock, which use shall be subject to the above restrictions.

ARTICLE XII

ASSESSMENTS:LIABILITY, LIENS, PRIORITY, INTEREST AND COLLECTIONS

- A. The Association, through its Board of Directors, shall have the power to determine and fix the sums necessary to provide for the Common Expenses, including the expense allocable to services being rendered by a management company with whom the Association may contract. Unless specifically waived by the Association, the Assessments shall include monies required for the payment of hazard and liability insurance premiums. A Unit Owner, regardless of the manner in which he acquired title to his unit including, without limitation, a purchaser at a judicial sale, shall be liable for all Assessments while he is the owner of a Unit. In a voluntary conveyance of a Unit, the grantee shall be jointly and severally liable with the grantor for all unpaid Assessments against the latter for his share of the Common Expenses up to the time of such voluntary conveyance.
- B. The liability for Assessments may not be avoided by waiver of the use or enjoyment of any common facilities, Common Elements, services or recreation facilities, or by abandonment of the Unit against which the Assessment was made.
- C. Assessments and installments thereof not paid when due shall bear interest from the due date until paid at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum.
- D. The Association shall have a lien upon each Condominium Parcel to secure the personal obligation of each Unit Owner thereof for any unpaid Assessment and interest thereon. Such lien shall also secure reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the Association incident to the collection of such Assessment or enforcement of such lien. The lien shall be evidenced by a claim recorded